
 

 

 
 

Budget Scrutiny Task Group - Adult and Children Social Care 
 

All Members of the Budget Scrutiny Task Group: Adult and Children Social Care are 
requested to attend the meeting to be held as follows 
 
Wednesday, 21st October, 2015 
 
6.30 pm 
 
Room 103, Hackney Town Hall, Mare Street, London E8 1EA 
 
Contact: 
Jarlath O'Connell 
( 0208 356 3309 
* jarlath.oconnell@hackney.gov.uk 
 
Gifty Edila 
Corporate Director of Legal, Human Resources and Regulatory Services 
 
Members: Cllr Laura Bunt, Cllr Susan Fajana-Thomas, Cllr Emma Plouviez and 

Cllr Clare Potter 
  

Agenda 
 

ALL MEETINGS ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 

1 Apologies for absence   

2 Urgent items/ Order of business   

3 Declarations of interest   

4 Minutes of the previous meeting  (Pages 1 - 12) 

5 Proposed savings areas for 2016/7  (Pages 13 - 22) 

6 Any other business   

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

Access and Information 
 
 

Getting to the Town Hall 

For a map of how to find the Town Hall, please visit the council’s website 
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/contact-us.htm or contact the Overview and 
Scrutiny Officer using the details provided on the front cover of this agenda. 

 
 

Accessibility 

There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor 
of the Town Hall. 
 
Induction loop facilities are available in the Assembly Halls and the Council 
Chamber. Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through 
the ramp on the side to the main Town Hall entrance. 

 
 

Further Information about the Commission 
 
If you would like any more information about the Scrutiny 
Commission, including the membership details, meeting 
dates and previous reviews, please visit the website or use 
this QR Code (accessible via phone or tablet ‘app’) 
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/individual-scrutiny-
commissions-community-safety-and-social-inclusion.htm  

 
 

Public Involvement and Recording 
Scrutiny meetings are held in public, rather than being public meetings. This 
means that whilst residents and press are welcome to attend, they can only 
ask questions at the discretion of the Chair. For further information relating to 
public access to information, please see Part 4 of the council’s constitution, 
available at http://www.hackney.gov.uk/l-gm-constitution.htm or by contacting 
Governance Services (020 8356 3503) 
 
Rights of Press and Public to Report on Meetings 
 

Where a meeting of the Council and its committees are open to the public, the 
press and public are welcome to report on meetings of the Council and its 
committees, through any audio, visual or written methods and may use digital 
and social media providing they do not disturb the conduct of the meeting and 
providing that the person reporting or providing the commentary is present at 



 

 

the meeting. 
 
Those wishing to film, photograph or audio record a meeting are asked to 
notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer by noon on the day of the meeting, if 
possible, or any time prior to the start of the meeting or notify the Chair at the 
start of the meeting. 
 
The Monitoring Officer, or the Chair of the meeting, may designate a set area 
from which all recording must take place at a meeting. 
 
The Council will endeavour to provide reasonable space and seating to view, 
hear and record the meeting.  If those intending to record a meeting require 
any other reasonable facilities, notice should be given to the Monitoring 
Officer in advance of the meeting and will only be provided if practicable to do 
so. 
 
The Chair shall have discretion to regulate the behaviour of all those present 
recording a meeting in the interests of the efficient conduct of the meeting.   
Anyone acting in a disruptive manner may be required by the Chair to cease 
recording or may be excluded from the meeting. Disruptive behaviour may 
include: moving from any designated recording area; causing excessive 
noise; intrusive lighting; interrupting the meeting; or filming members of the 
public who have asked not to be filmed. 
 
All those visually recording a meeting are requested to only focus on 
recording councillors, officers and the public who are directly involved in the 
conduct of the meeting.  The Chair of the meeting will ask any members of the 
public present if they have objections to being visually recorded.  Those 
visually recording a meeting are asked to respect the wishes of those who do 
not wish to be filmed or photographed.   Failure by someone recording a 
meeting to respect the wishes of those who do not wish to be filmed and 
photographed may result in the Chair instructing them to cease recording or in 
their exclusion from the meeting. 
 
If a meeting passes a motion to exclude the press and public then in order to 
consider confidential or exempt information, all recording must cease and all 
recording equipment must be removed from the meeting room. The press and 
public are not permitted to use any means which might enable them to see or 
hear the proceedings whilst they are excluded from a meeting and confidential 
or exempt information is under consideration. 
 
Providing oral commentary during a meeting is not permitted. 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
Budget Scrutiny Task Group – Adult and Children 
Social Care 
 
21st October 2015 
 
Minutes and matters arising 
 

 
Item No 

 

4 
 
OUTLINE 
 
Attached please find the minutes of the meeting of the Task Group held on 16 
September 2015. 
 
 
MATTERS ARISING 
 
Action at 6.75 
 
ACTION
: 

a) The AD Adult Social Care, AD Commissioning and the AD Children and 
Young People Services to each provide more detail on the advanced 
savings proposals which are being offered in each of their budget 
areas. 

b) The AD Adult Social Care and AD Commissioning to provide a brief 
outline of the total adult social care spend for the borough 
encompassing what is commissioned by the Council, the CCG and NHSE 
with a breakdown of spend and function. 

c) The AD Adult Social Care to provide further detail on ‘One Hackney’ 
and the future plans for it. 

d) O&S Officer to invite Cllr McShane to the next meeting of the Task 
Group. 

e) O&S Officer to ensure that electronic agendas for each of the Task 
Groups be emailed to all Members to remind them that this work is 
taking place and that they are welcome to attend. 

 
 
Response 
 

(a) Is attached at item 5 
(b) This is awaited. 
(c) This was circulated to Members. 
(d) This has been done. 
(e) This has been done. 

 
 
ACTION 
 
The Task Group is requested to agree the minutes and note the matters 
arising. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Minutes of the proceedings 
of the Budget Scrutiny Task 
Group - ASC and CSC held 
at Hackney Town Hall, Mare 
Street, London E8 1EA 

 
 

 
London Borough of Hackney 
Budget Scrutiny Task Group - Adult & Children Social Care  
Municipal Year 2015/16 
Date of Meeting: Wednesday, 16th September 2015 

 
 

Chair:  Cllr Emma Plouviez 
 

Task Group Members  
in Attendance: 

Cllr Laura Bunt, Cllr Susan Fajana-Thomas and 
Cllr Clare Potter 

  
Apologies:  Cllr Jonathan McShane  
  

Officers in Attendance Rob Blackstone (Assistant Director Adult Social Care), 
Sheila Durr (Assistant Director, Children and Young 
People’s Service), Genette Laws (AD Commissioning, 
Health and Community Services), Jackie Moylan 
(Assistant Director of Finance CYPS and LHRR), James 
Newman (Head of Finance - Health and Community 
Services) and Kim Wright (Corporate Director Health and 
Community Services) 

  

Others:  Councillor Anntoinette Bramble (Cabinet Member for 
Children's Services), Councillor Robert Chapman, Cllr 
Ann Munn (Chair, Health in Hackney Scrutiny 
Commission) 
 

Members of the 
public: 

1 

  
  
Officer Contact: 

 
Jarlath O'Connell 

( 0208 356 3309 
* jarlath.oconnell@hackney.gov.uk 
 

 
1 Election of Chair  

 
1.1 The O&S officer invited nominations for Chair.  Cllr Bunt nominated Cllr 

Plouviez and Cllr Potter seconded the nomination.  Cllr Plouviez was 
elected Chair. 

 
RESOLVED: That Cllr Plouviez be appointed Chair of the Task Group. 
 
 

2 Apologies for absence  
 
2.1 An apology for absence was received from Cllr McShane. 
 

 

Page 3



Wednesday, 16th September, 2015  

 

 
 

3 Urgent items/ Order of business  
 
3.1 There were no urgent items and the order of business was as on the agenda. 
 
 

4 Declarations of interest  
 
4.1 Cllr Chapman, attending as an observer, stated that he was a Trustee of Friends 

of the Elderly, a charity dedicated to supporting older people. 
 

5 Terms of Reference for the Budget Scrutiny Task Groups (as agreed by 
Governance and Resources SC)  
 
5.1 The Task Group Members noted the Terms of Reference document for the 4 

Groups as agreed by Governance and Resources Scrutiny Commission. 
 

RESOLVED: That the terms of reference for the 4 Task Groups be 
noted. 

 
 

6 Proposed savings areas for 2016/7  
 
6.1 The Group gave consideration to two papers on Proposed Areas for Savings for 

2016/17, one from Children and Young People Services and one from Adult 
Social Care and Commissioning in Health and Community Services. 

 
6.2 The Chair welcomed to the meeting the authors of the reports:  
 
 Sheila Durr, AD Children and Young People’s Service (SD) 
 Jackie Moylan, Assistant Director of Finance (CYPS & LHRR) (JM) 
 Kim Wright, Corporate Director, Health and Community Services (KW) 
 Rob Blackstone, AD Adult Social Care (RB) 
 Genette Laws, AD Commissioning (GL) 
 James Newman, Head of Finance, Community Services (JN)  
 
 
6.3 It was noted that the following were also present for this item: 
 
 Cllr Anntoinette Bramble, Cabinet Member for Children’s Services  
 Cllr Rob Chapman, Labour Group Chief Whip 
 Cllr Ann Munn, Chair of Health in Hackney Scrutiny Commission  
 
6.4 JM and SD introduced the paper from Children’s Services and took Members 

through the 1CYPS principles.  The following points were noted: 
 

a) The key approach in the service was to intervene early to prevent spend in 
statutory areas and this kept Hackney’s rate of statutory provision low 
compared to its statistical neighbours. 

b) The biggest cost was in supporting families to keep their children with 
intervention as prevention being the key.  Demand came from the public 
considering that care was a viable option for their children and there was a 
balance always to be stuck between the benefits of the state providing a 
service to a child vs the need to empower the parents to provide for their own 
child.   

Page 4



Wednesday, 16th September, 2015  

 

c) The aim was to have as few children as possible facing statutory processes 
because often these processes could do harm to them therefore it was 
important not to over intervene. Managing of rights and their resource 
implications became issues when the child comes in contact with social 
services. 

d) Some children were supported up to 18 years of age because often it was 
cheaper in the long run to intervene rather than not.  In times of austerity it 
was harder to demonstrate the effectiveness of prevention. 

e) The key with 1CYPS was that money was focused where it had the most 
impact and all services were measured carefully. 

f) The Youth Hubs were experiencing their biggest footfall ever 
g) Only the best staff were employed and retained by the service and this was 

at the forefront in any restructure.  The Service wanted most children’s social 
care work to happen out in the community and the aim was to be able to 
empower the community and address any abuse that may happen.  

h) It was important to note that the majority of children who came into care did 
go home again or to other next of kin and this had been useful in the 
community for building trust in the service. 

i) They had gone through the whole service to minimise referrals between 
services and have everyone working with same early-help mind-set. 

 
6.5 Cllr Bramble added that while the impact of central government cuts had been 

significant, the model for the service remained as child centred.  They had had 
redundancies and they were mindful that there had been a real shift in the 
service to a focus on prevention.  The Chair commented that Members were now 
well aware of the focus on prevention rather than crisis management.    

 
Questions and answers – Children and Young People Services 

 
6.6 Cllr Munn asked whether having a greater spend on Adult Social Care would 

save money on Children’s Social Care. 
 
6.7 RB replied that he and SD worked closely together particular on the issue of 

transitions.  There were numerous examples but one he cited was the work on 
supporting families with children who have disabilities in getting the children into 
colleges, which invariably were out of borough.  He added that on the Promoting 
Independence Strategy there was much cross over on the principles.  He added 
that it was not outside the realms of possibility that budgets might be aligned in 
the future.  SD added that it worked in the other direction too where a failure to 
act sufficiently on an adult social care issue would have an impact on any 
children involved and this would lead to an impact on their service down the line. 

 
6.8 Cllr Bunt asked how they went about co-commissioning? 
 
6.9 SD replied that there were a number of examples such as Supporting People, 

Special Educational Needs, co-locating work in Children’s Centres and the 
placing social workers in schools.  The focus was on ‘whole family’.  Housing 
was another key cross cutting area.  RB added that retaining of social workers 
was an issue here.  Adult care social workers also reported children’s care 
issues and the reporting systems were now much more rigorous.  He added that 
the focus now was on the ‘Hackney Pound’ and ensuring that wass spent most 
efficiently. 

 
6.10 Cllr Potter asked, with reference to chart one on p.13, why there was such a 

variation across London in terms of spend on prevention vs spend on statutory 
services and why, for example, Brent was so low. 

 

Page 5



Wednesday, 16th September, 2015  

 

6.11 SD pointed out that Brent has in fact been criticised by Ofsted on this.  JM added 
that Hackney’s spend was not high compared to our statistical neighbours.  SD 
added that the clear stated commitment to a whole family approach in Hackney 
was unique and the ethos and way of working was different from many.  An early 
intervention focus was of course contingent on proving its impact at the other 
end of the scale.  

 
6.12 Cllr Chapman stated that there was £2m savings referred to for 2016/7 but asked 

for detail on how this was going to be saved. 
 
6.13 SD replied that less was being spent on management.  The Young Hackney 

team were spending more time in the Youth Hubs.  More value was being sought 
from the contracts with the VCS and there were more joined up processes such 
triage and family support services.  There was also a greater emphasis on 
cutting out duplication of services going to families.  Cllr Bramble added 
clarification that management level remits had been widened.  SD added that the 
focus was in putting statutory capability and expertise across the whole service 
with, for example, putting social workers in to schools.  If child protection issues 
now arose in schools they could be identified sooner and perhaps dealt with in 
the schools.  In the new model it would be easier to flip between the statutory 
and non-statutory services and for example fewer children’s issues in schools 
would have to be escalated to the statutory service. 

 
6.14 The Chair commented that it felt like the youth service had of late been shunted 

around and asked what these changes meant for the relationship between a 
young person and their social worker.   

 
6.15 SD replied that the new model put Youth Justice closer to Child Protection.  

Some child protection cases would for example be in families known to the Youth 
Justice system. While the service might be reducing in some aspects the 
regulatory framework remained the same. 

 
6.16 Cllr Bunt asked what gaps were being addressed in the changes. 
 
6.17 SD replied that she was worried about changes to demand in the system.  She 

was concerned that in-year cuts had been announced in the Youth Justice Board 
and that generally developments occurred much more quickly now.  There was a 
need now for a very flexible approach but they had many examples of where the 
service had invested and so had saved significant costs. Cllr Bramble added that 
it was the pressure of constant central government cuts which was the concern.  
SD added that the Chief Executive of Children England had recently criticised 
what was happening by commenting that the government was trying to build a 
market at the same time as it was cutting the sector which commissioned the 
services in this market.  

 
6.18 Cllr Munn asked for clarification on this issue of reducing the burden of 

regulation. 
 
6.19 SD explained that there was a lag in the regulatory system in that some things 

which were statutory no longer had any impact and the whole Statutory 
Performance Framework was very out of date.  The Conservative government 
had promised to reduce bureaucracy but hadn’t done this and in fact had added 
more so the statutory framework was greater and there was an industry now in 
servicing it.  The addition of the whole machinery of Ofsted regulation on top was 
a huge cost and councils for example had to maintain resources focused solely 
on regulation.  She explained that in her department there was a regulatory post 
called the Independent Reviewing Officer and this had to be held by a social 
worker of at least 3 years standing post qualification and their role was just to 

Page 6



Wednesday, 16th September, 2015  

 

check on the social workers.  When a service was high performing, as Hackney’s 
was, this was a waste of scarce resources as an expensive social worker had to 
be paid to effectively tick boxes for Ofsted.  RB added that in Adult Social Care 
they had a Performance Team who tried to keep the regulation activity burden to 
the statutory minimum and in addition they try to use these posts more flexibly 
and keep them constantly under review.  JM added that restrictions such as this 
made it more difficult to make cost savings on admin. 

 
6.20 Cllr Potter asked how the crisis in the shortage of foster carers was progressing 

and how this came about in the first place. 
 
6.21 Cllr Bramble replied that one factor locally was that the age profile of foster 

carers was increasing and as they got older they were taking fewer children.  SD 
added that in Hackney too people didn’t have the types of houses which would 
allow them to take in more children.  Black female foster carers were the 
stalwarts of the service.  SD added that private sector fostering was a huge 
industry and councils were not able to compete with them on a level playing field. 
They had to share with them all their market information and data but this is one 
way.  They also had to buy in foster care from private agencies because of the 
demand pressures and this costs twice as much as in-house provision and most 
were not located in Hackney.  

 
6.22 The Chair stated that if Hackney was to have a fruitful campaign to recruit new 

foster carers they needed to know who these people might be and what 
information or data did they have on them? 

 
6.33 SD replied that it was a challenge.  They had previously done campaigns but the 

quality of the candidates coming forward had been poor.  Word of mouth was a 
vital factor in encouraging people to try fostering.  There was also a campaign 
currently to encourage staff to recommend fostering to friends and family.  There 
was also a 6-borough campaign.  One angle was to encourage potential foster 
parents to come to North London as they would have a greater chance of getting 
the children they wanted here.   

 
6.34 Cllr Fajana-Thomas asked if the monetary incentive was working. 
 
6.35 SD replied that the recommenders would only get the payment if the candidate 

had been through the process and been successful so there would be a 6 month 
lag.  Cllr Bramble added that the borough also shared expertise and training for 
foster carers with other boroughs.   

 
6.36 The Chair asked if the profile of the typical foster parent was altering at all from 

being a middle aged black woman.   
 
6.37 SD replied that the profile of newcomers to it was getting younger but black 

females predominated and they were of course trying to target as wide a range 
of people as possible.  She added that they had tried to engage more full time 
professionals in foster caring but most had found it too exhausting.  Hackney’s 
USP however was in the training it did provide for foster carers.   

 
6.38 The Chair asked if it was still worth persevering with those who might not last 

long because overall the time spent with a child would be relatively short and at 
least there would be a carer provided.   

 
6.39 Cllr Bramble replied that the aim was to return the child to its family or wider 

family and so 1 or 2 years fostering in a child’s life might be sufficient for them.  It 
was worth it therefore to have as many carers available as possible so an 
intervention could be made with every child who needed it. SD added that this 

Page 7



Wednesday, 16th September, 2015  

 

could be a factor in future campaigns – to come and join us even for 1 or 2 
years.  

 
6.40 Cllr Potter asked if the Council could lobby on the lack of a level playing field in 

the foster care market. 
 
6.41 SD replied that this was being done.  She added that when the NAO assessed 

the efficiency of council foster services they found that most councils 
underestimated the costs they added on and it remained significantly cheaper to 
do fostering in-house than via private providers. 

 
6.42 Cllrs Munn and Chapman asked if it was possible before the next meeting to see 

more detail on the savings proposals which were being worked up. 
 
6.43  Cllr Potter asked about the impact of all this on staff morale. 
 
6.44 SD replied that a workforce strategy was in place further to the ‘reclaim youth 

work’ initiative.  It was important that talented and ambitious staff knew that there 
were structures for career progression in place for them in Hackney. She added 
that staff who left Hackney had no problem in securing jobs elsewhere.  RB 
echoed this, stating that retaining good staff was real challenge in the current 
market.  Cuts in staff development therefore need to be avoided.   

 
6.45 Cllr Munn asked whether recruitment costs were a problem? 
 
6.46 RB replied that there had been instances when they had advertised and got little 

or no response, then went to the appointed agency which still produced nothing.  
He added that he would not recruit staff who were of poor quality however 
challenging the recruitment process might be.  He added that he was lucky to 
have some social workers in his team who had been there 6 years and this was 
very unusual in London.  The problem of other authorities poaching staff was one 
he shared with children’s social care.  Cllr Munn added that it would be 
interesting to see a comparison of recruitment costs across Children’s vs Adult 
social care.  RB replied that he had just recruited newly qualified junior social 
worker who had been working in a restaurant for example.  SD added that they 
had had success in recruiting from continental Europe e.g. Sweden and 
Germany.  

 
6.47 The Chair thanked the officers from CYP Services for their report and 

attendance. 
 
6.48 GL took Members through the briefing report on Adult Social Care and 

Commissioning.  She stated that the previous cost savings plans had delivered 
cashable savings and it was now necessary to look at more significant reform to 
deliver the level of savings requested.  Recently the team had been visited by 
Prof John Bolton from the Department of Health who was investigating Hackney 
as an example of good practice in having managed down demand spend while 
satisfaction with services were still going up.  It was now necessary to look at all 
options including all non-statutory services such as Supporting People and to 
examine all possibilities for income generation and at what other authorities were 
charging for.  There was a need to look carefully at what they might be able to 
stop doing and to revisit the current three tiered structure of service delivery.   

 
 Questions and answers – Adult Social Care 
 
6.49  Cllr Fajana-Thomas asked about the savings in service transformation. 
 

Page 8



Wednesday, 16th September, 2015  

 

6.50 GL replied that there were a range of changes but one for example was the re-
commissioning of the telecare team.  One lead provider for the whole service 
replaced the previous two.  This delivered savings of £120K and they were 
looking at a whole range of areas. 

 
6.51 Cllr Fajana-Thomas asked about the reference to 65 external providers for 

Supporting People and whether this was normal.    
 
6.52 GL replied that Supporting People had a long history and spend was across a 

number of public agencies (PCTs, Probation, Councils etc).  The service 
transformation involved bringing together spend and going for economies of 
scale with fewer contractors.  Previously there had been a large number of very 
small contracts focused on the needs of particular groups.  It also had been quite 
a tiered service.  The aim now was to look at smaller number of contracts and to 
focus them on those with the most need.  The number of contractors had 
reduced from 63 to 35 and the services were now serving c. 3000 people rather 
than 7300 in the past.  RB added that a lot of work was going on in the 
background on whether service were delivering what was needed and successful 
partnerships had been established with ELFT or through the Integrated Mental 
Health Team.  He added that he led on the Section 75 contract with ELFT for 
example and he made sure they wre still delivering in Hackney, despite their 
expansion nationally.  He chaired governance meetings each month to ensure 
delivery was on target. 

 
6.53 Cllr Bunt asked where the under spend of £1m in mental health care support 

came from. 
 
6.54 RB replied that the under spend came through via all the savings. They did for 

example make savings in staffing when a restructuring was coming down the line 
and for example on day care there would be a move next year to one centre.  JN 
added that a new government led process for presenting information on clients 
(‘Primary Support Regions’), would also contribute to savings.  RB added that he 
attended a Pan London Partnership Meeting on Mental Health and Hackney had 
been singled out by the NHS at those meetings for its model of delivery.  The 
focus on promoting independence rather than perpetuating creating dependence 
was proving successful.  

 
6.55 KW (who had just joined the meeting) added that at the end of every year they 

went through an exercise on right-sizing budgets and she personally went 
through any consistent underspends and requested that they be offered up as 
savings. There had to be a forensic line by line analysis of the ASC budget as it 
was the biggest spend in the Council and close scrutiny of the budget was also 
carried out by the Chief Executive.  

 
6.56 Cllr Munn asked in relation to 2017-18 budget and beyond, whether there was 

some clarity about things the Council should no longer be doing and were there 
any significant items here. 

 
6.57 KW replied that they had virtually exhausted the potential for cost savings in 

each service area over the last few rounds and Promoting Independence would 
be likely to be exhausted as a potential area by the end of this year. They would 
have to look at the big spend non statutory items such as the number of 
Supporting People contracts.  RB added that Provided Services, in particular 
Housing with Care, was a big spend area that needed to be looked at.  There 
would be savings from the new Day Care Strategy and on Transport.  The 
challenge now was about how to re-focus, looking at different operating models. 

 

Page 9



Wednesday, 16th September, 2015  

 

6.58 Cllr Potter asked whether more services would be brought in house. She also 
asked about the Single Commissioning Plan with key partners and about what 
impact they were seeing of the welfare reforms. 

 
6.59 KW replied that the focus wasn’t about whether or not to bring something in-

house but to examine the model of delivery and how services might be delivered 
more efficiently.  In the past they had missed opportunities to look at what might 
be done differently.  She added that the CCG and Public Health also face 
significant reductions and given that there will be less resources everywhere all 
partners have to challenge themselves to look at new models of delivery and this 
involved providers such as the Homerton and not just commissioners.  RB added 
that the shared services agenda was a significant issue now.  KW added that 
broadly speaking the CCGs budget here was £400m, ASC’s £84m, Public Health 
£29m and there were also significant input from ELFT.  A lot of money was being 
spent across the partners and the challenge was to find synergies here which 
could deliver savings.    

 
6.60 Cllr Potter asked for further detail on the broad spend by each partner in the 

borough on social care.  Cllr Chapman commented that this was an excellent 
report but because more advanced proposals must now be nearly completed, 
the Task Group would benefit from seeing these, particularly relating to 2016/17. 

 
6.61 KW replied that they would be able to bring to the Task Group the ‘direction of 

travel’ proposals.  A number of ideas were being explored including charging £5 
per week for Telecare for example.  Day Care Integration was expected to 
deliver £700K inc. £300K this year.  Work was also ongoing with the CCG on 
joint funding of services.  The task for 2017 and beyond would be tougher and 
options were being explored for Provided Services and Supporting People.   

 
6.62 Cllr Chapman stated that ASC was the largest budget and so very difficult 

decisions would have to be made about what might have to stop.  What was the 
possibility of this happening for 2016/7? 

 
6.63 KW replied that it was not likely for 2016/7 but would be a factor for 2017/8 

onwards and they could go through this in more detail at the next meeting.   
 
6.64 Cllr Fajana-Thomas asked whether there would be a requirement to consult on 

Equality Impact Assessments? 
 
6.65 GL replied that it would be necessary to speak to service users and EIAs were 

vital in ensuring that impact was minimised.   
 
6.66 Cllr Chapman asked about the synergies with CCG, HUHFT and ELFT and Cllr 

Potter asked if they could receive a breakdown of spend and function on these.  
 
6.67 GL replied that tackling delayed hospital discharges was a key bit of partnership 

working.  The partnership approach looked at whole care pathways and moving 
relatively small amounts of money to have more impact.  RB added that the ‘One 
Hackney’ partnership initiative (aimed at the over 70s) had also been making 
some early progress.  He had 5 social workers now involved in it and they really 
appreciated the new way of working.  The Promoting Independence Strategy had 
a training programme behind it.  People are looking at that closely and it had the 
potential to be the start of a new alliance.  The IIT (formerly RICs) service based 
at the Homerton involved intensive prevention work and ultimately a move 
towards quadrant based working (based on the 4 Hackney CCG quadrants). 

 
6.68 Cllr Munn asked why the Task Group was looking at Adult and Children’s social 

care together. 

Page 10



Wednesday, 16th September, 2015  

 

 
6.69 KW replied that there was a sense that having a focus on young people can 

preclude thinking about the whole family and that there might be an appetite to 
better join up adults and children’s services, which the Task Group could explore 
further.  JN reminded Members that prior to the Children’s Act adult and children 
services were part of one Social Services department.  RB added that as the 
beginning of his career as a social worker he had worked across both services all 
the time.   

 
6.70 KW explained that recently in Hackney they had established Leadership 

Summits which comprised the leaders/chief executives of the CCG, ELFT, 
HUHFT, CHUHSE, GP Confederation and the Council, to explore what the future 
might look like were they to collaborate better.  Having gone through this process 
there was now a much better understanding of the issues across the partners 
and a sense that the Hackney Pound needed to be used more wisely.  The 
Summits should encourage the partners to take the leap of faith necessary and 
to trust one another more so that progress on collaboration and integration could 
be made.  ‘One Hackney’ fitted very well into this but it had proved very difficult 
at the beginning.  They were now looking at case studies of issues that didn’t 
work well and trying to learn from them.  In the beginning there would be 30 
people at these meetings.  Trust had to be earned and there had to be fewer 
people at these meetings and there had to be learning from the process.   

 
6.71 Cllr Fajana-Thomas asked what modelling had been done on the impact of the 

welfare reforms on ASC’s budget.   
 
6.72 JN replied that there had been no impact yet on collection rates for charges.  

There was of course a ‘fairer charging’ policy in place.  The other significant 
impact on the budget would be from the Care Act because there would be a 
need for a much higher number of care assessments to be done.  One aspect of 
Hackney’s demographic that would have a bearing here was that there weren’t a 
large number of self funders for social care.  Overall there currently wasn’t a 
significant income pressure. The way in which the Council charged for residential 
care was also nationally determined.   

 
6.73 The Chair asked about the difficult balancing of health vs social care funding and 

its impact on the service’s income. 
 
6.74 JN replied that most of the income generation activity was with the partners and 

the Council had less of an opportunity to generate income from service users.  
They were however looking at Telecare charging.   

 
6.75 The Chair thanked the officers for their papers and for their attendance. 
 

ACTION: a) The AD Adult Social Care, AD Commissioning 
and the AD Children and Young People Services 
to each provide more detail on the advanced 
savings proposals which are being offered in 
each of their budget areas. 

 
b) The AD Adult Social Care and AD 

Commissioning to provide a brief outline of the 
total adult social care spend for the borough 
encompassing what is commissioned by the 
Council, the CCG and NHSE with a breakdown of 
spend and function. 
 

Page 11



Wednesday, 16th September, 2015  

 

c) The AD Adult Social Care to provide further 
detail on ‘One Hackney’ and the future plans for 
it. 

 
d) O&S Officer to invite Cllr McShane to the next 

meeting of the Task Group. 
 

e) O&S Officer to ensure that electronic agendas 
for each of the Task Groups be emailed to all 
Members to remind them that this work is taking 
place and that they are welcome to attend. 

 
 
 

7 Date of next meeting  
 
7.1 The Members agreed that following the receipt of the additional information they 

had requested they would confirm the need for a follow up meeting. 
 
7.2 Wed 21 October at 7.00 pm was agreed as the provisional date. 
 
 

8 Any other business  
 
8.1 There was none. 
 
 

 
Duration of the meeting: 7.00  - 9.10 pm 

 
 

Page 12



 

 

 
Budget Scrutiny Task Group – Adult and Children 
Social Care 
 
21st October 2015 
 
Proposed Areas of Savings 2016/7 
 

 
Item No 

 

5 
 
OUTLINE 
 
Further to the discussion at the meeting on 16 September, please find 
attached two updates from the service areas: 
 

a) Briefing on 1CYPS savings 
b) Adult Social Care and Commissioning draft savings proposals for 

2016-17. 
 
Attending for this item will be: 
 
Shelia Durr, AD Children and Young People’s Service 
Jackie Moylan, AD Finance CYPS and LHRR 
 
Kim Wright, Corporate Director, Health and Community Services 
Genette Laws, AD Commissioning, Health and Community Services 
Rob Blackstone, AD Adult Social Care, Health and Community Services 
James Newman, Head of Finance, Health and Community Services 
 
Also invited are:  
Cllr Jonathan McShane, Cabinet Member for Health Social Care and Culture 
Cllr Anntoinette Bramble, Cabinet Member for Children’s Services 
Cllr Ann Munn, Chair of Health in Hackney Scrutiny Commission 
 
 
ACTION 
 
The Task Group is requested to: 
 

a) Endorse the proposals and/or 
b) Make any recommendations as necessary to the Mayor for 

amendments to the proposals 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

1CYPS Savings £1.958m 

In order to deliver significant savings whilst minimising the impact on services, the Director 
of Children’s Services Management Team (DCSMT) took a fresh look at the services provided 
across the Directorate and considered how to adjust the services it is responsible for 
mindful to build on the good work already done.  The objectives were to reduce the demand 
on statutory services through refocussing our investment in prevention thereby building 
resilience; and to simplify and unify services avoiding duplication where possible.  The first 
step was to establish a clear set of 1CYPS principles. 

 

1CYPS principles 

 

There is a lean core service that governs all standards and methods of work. 
 

Money is focussed on where it has most impact. 
 

Only the best are employed and retained. 
 

Community settings undertake most work. 
 

Community empowered to address abuse, neglect, social need and prevent escalation 
to statutory services and dependency. 

 
All work is family work or is otherwise clearly defined (e.g.youth work, education, 

adolescent transition to adulthood). 
 

Focus is on preventing people’s needs escalating and/or helping people receive/exit 
statutory services rapidly. 

 
Experience and knowledge is maintained and developed in the workforce. 

 
Outcomes are explicit for families and practitioners  

 

 

These principles have been applied in challenging services across the directorate including 
those commissioned from the VCS. We have also looked at ensuring that YJB grant money 
received is targeted on funding services which have a direct impact on outcomes for young 
people where previously it contributed more widely to budgets across the directorate. 

Table one gives a breakdown of how the £1.958m 1CYPS was achieved. It should be noted 
that these savings are already being delivered.  They are being achieved by service 
redesign with the main focus being improvements to service delivery. As a result before 
and after structures are not directly comparable although examples are given of how 
revised structures deliver savings.  

  

Page 15



 

 

 

Table one: 1CYPS Savings 

 £m 
Young Hackney Staffing savings 
Redesign of YH structures. This followed an audit of the activity of YH 
staff which identified that there was significant scope for reducing the 
time spent by staff in meetings and on administrative tasks to both 
release savings and increase the proportion of time staff spent 
engaged with young people.  The savings were achieved by reducing 
middle-management roles and replacing higher graded Young 
Hackney practitioner posts, with youth support and development 
workers, which were evaluated at a lower grade, but had an increased 
focus on running activities and maximising time spent with young 
people. The administrative burden has also been reduced by focussing 
on reporting key outcomes and contacts which has supported a 
reduction in business support staff.  
 

0.913 

Youth Justice  and Re-alignment of Youth Justice Board good practice 
grant 
Savings have been achieved by reduction in middle-management in 
the Youth Justice Service which is now managed alongside 
safeguarding and by utilising the YJB good practice grant to fund one 
of the gangs units within Community Safety, Custody Triage managed 
within Young Hackney and targeted youth support work also in Young 
Hackney. Previously the YJB grant was used widely across the 
directorate with proportions of a wide range of posts (which were 
already core funded) allocated to it.  

0.566 

Connecting Young Hackney 
The Connecting Young Hackney Framework by which we commission 
our universal youth provision continues until 2017, and enables the 
evaluation of need and award of contracts on an annual basis. In line 
with our overarching methodology for CYPS we have reviewed both 
Council and commissioned youth provision to identify savings whilst 
ensuring the greatest impact for the greatest number of children and 
young people. In reviewing the contracts of commissioned providers 
and assessing value for money, the service evaluated the reported 
outputs, outcomes, qualitative assessments and cost per head of 
providers. This comparative exercise identified the impact of the 
current contracts, and highlighted inconsistencies in outputs and 
outcomes relative to the value of the contracts. Prior to implementing 
the new contracts the Head of Policy was consulted along with the 
Chief Executive of Hackney CVS on potential impact of the savings 
identified. Once the potential savings were identified discussions 
were held with all organisations to outline the methodology and 
proposed contracts from April 2015.  
 

0.230 

Page 16



 

 

Implementation of First Access Screening Team (FAST) 
FAST is a single referral and screening service that joins data 
intelligence and partnership interface within the Triage Service with 
the First Response Team and provides a streamlined and coherent 
referral mechanism for children and an opportunity to reach children, 
young people and families. The saving has been achieved through the 
reduction in management and administration which was possible 
from bringing the two services together. 
 

0.090 

Family support 
The new family support service implements a model in which families 
in need of family support interventions can, where appropriate, 
receive both statutory and non-statutory services thereby ensuring 
increased consistency and accountability and minimising transitions. 
The new model has reduced management roles.   

0.096 

Further implementation of Practice Development Manager role 
The CSC structure has evolved to offer opportunities for professional 
development and now includes larger units under Practice 
Development Managers (PDM). PDMs and Consultant Social Workers 
(CSW) lead units which contain a mix of social workers, qualified 
children’s practitioners (who are newly qualified social workers) and 
unit co-ordinators.  A PDM is a more senior role with capacity to hold 
more cases. The role creates an opportunity for our CSWs to progress 
when ready and as this progression occurs savings are released. 
However, recruitment and retention at this role needs to be closely 
monitored to ensure the saving is sustainable.   In addition, the 
structure provides the framework for QCPs to develop professionally 
and when ready become social workers. All units are supported by the 
clinical service. 
 

0.063 

Total 1.958 
 

Impact 

Savings delivered from within the Young Hackney budget have primarily been achieved 
through a reduction in management and staff costs whilst preserving front line delivery for 
children and young people.  The new model places an emphasis on focused management 
and administration with staff work patterns which reflect the times young people are 
available; primarily after school, evenings and weekends.  

Whilst management posts have been reduced the number of part time youth work staff has 
been increased to ensure service capacity to deliver open access youth, sport and 
participation programmes.  

Young Hackney delivery will be driven through two Hubs; Forest Road and the Edge, and 
each will provide outreach and support two part time youth clubs at the Guinness Trust 

Page 17



 

 

Estate in the North of the borough and Fellows Court Estate in the South. This is in addition 
to the commissioned hubs at Hoxton Hall, Concorde and Stoke Newington.  

It would be premature to try and model the total impact of the 1CYPS redesign on the 
Young Hackney Service this early in the year. The data for service delivery is however 
continuing to show an increase in take up through our directly delivered hub and estate 
based provision.  

For example in Q1 2015/16, Forest Road, The Edge and our Youth Sports Team all exceeded 
the number of participants and attendances as compared to Q1 2014/15. This trend 
has continued since the hubs were first opened, in Q1 Forest Road had 4,800 
attendances with the Edge and the Sports Team close behind at 4,000 and over 3,500 
each. Arguably the changes have yet to take full effect but certainly the commitment of staff 
has remained high throughout the process of the 1CYPS redesign.   

We are clear that the majority of our VCS providers have committed to try to meet the 
needs of the same numbers of young people despite the reduction in contract values. It is 
emphasised that reductions were achieved by establishing the impact of the current 
contracts, and highlighting inconsistencies in outputs and outcomes relative to the value of 
the contracts.  

 

 

 

 

Page 18



 

 

  
 
Title:   Adult Social Care and Commissioning savings proposals for 2016/17 
 
Report from:  Genette Laws, Assistant Director, Commissioning and Robert 

Blackstone, Assistant Director, Adult Social Care 
 
Date:  21 October 2015 
 

 
 
1 Summary 
 
1.1 Over the last five years Adult Social Care and Commissioning has delivered 

savings in excess of £14 million, with a further £7.495 million in 2015/16. 
 

Table 1:  Budget Savings from 2010/11 to 2014/15: 

 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 Total 
Savings 

Older People & Physical 
Disabilities 

1,763 
 
 

1,487 1,812 1,300 919 7,281 

Learning Disabilities & 
Mental Health 
 

 1,498  200 221 1,919 

Housing related support 
and restructure of 
Commissioning division 

 189  3,200 2,004 5,393 

 1,763 3,174 1,812 4,700 3,144   14,593 

 
1.2 This report sets out the savings proposals for 2016/17. 
 
 
2   Recommendations 
 
2.1 That the Budget Scrutiny Task and Finish Group notes and comments on the 

four savings proposals set out in section 3 of this report. 
 
2.2 That the Budget Scrutiny Task and Finish Group receive a presentation at the 

meeting on 21 October 2015 about the savings proposal to introduce charging 
for the use of telecare services. 

 
2.3 That the Budget Scrutiny Task and Finish Group receive a presentation at the 

meeting on 21 October 2015 about the principles for commissioning, 
recommissioning and decommissioning housing related support services, 
known as Supporting People (SP) services over the next three years. 

  
 
 
 
3   Proposals 
 

Page 19



 

 

3.1 Adult Social Care and Commissioning has four proposals for savings in 
2016/17.  These proposals relate to day care transformation, mental health 
residential placements, housing related support services and introducing 
charges for telecare services.  The savings can be summarised as follows: 

 
Table 2:  Summary of Savings proposals: 

 
 Day care transformation 
3.2 The day care transformation project was agreed in 2012. Cabinet agreed to 

move away from traditional one-size-fits-all day-care based in buildings to 
providing a range of day care opportunities that reflect the needs of those 
requiring social inclusion.  The range of services in future provision is from 
short activities based in the community; through to supported friendship 
groups undertaking day trips; and through to those with the most complex 
needs visiting a purpose built day centre.  

 
3.3 The overall saving for this initiative is £1 million with £300k in 15/16, which has 

been achieved.  The £700k saving will also be achieved when the centre 
opens.  This saving is at risk due to an unsuccessful tender exercise arising 
from the construction market being buoyant and unacceptable bids coming 
forward to construct the day centre.  The project team has gone back out to 
the market with some refinements in the tender offer to improve the likelihood 
of acceptable bids coming forward.  Current estimated delay is three months 
to opening. 

 
Changes in number and price of adult residential placements in mental 
health 

3.4 Social Workers will review care packages to ensure that they continue to 
promote independence for service users.  This means that people may be 
assessed as being able to live successfully in the community with the right 
support and care so that they can live a less restricted and more fulfilling life.  
The cost of care in the community is generally cheaper than the cost of 
residential care. The success of this initiative will rely on Commissioning 
sourcing appropriate accommodation and support in the borough and this is 
being discussed with registered social landlords. 

 

 2016/17  
£000 

Current 
Policy 

 
ASC1 - Day Care Transformation 
   

700 Y 

 
ASC2 – Housing related support 
 

 Y 

 
ASC3 - Introducing Charges for the tele care service:   
 

245 N 

 
ASC4 – Changes in number and price of adult residential 
placements in mental health 
 

150 Y 

Total Adult Social Savings 1,095  

Page 20



 

 

3.5 Where people should continue to live in residential care, officers will use the 
Care Funding Calculator and market information, to ensure that the council is 
paying a fair price for care. 

 
Introducing Charges for the telecare service   

3.6 This savings proposal is based on income generation by charging for a 
service, which is currently free.  Telecare is a service that is available to 
people whether they have eligible care needs or not and there are 3500 
people that use this service.   

 
3.7 In Hackney the telecare service is not just about alarms that can be triggered 

by the service user if they fall, but also a response service which means that if 
an alert is raised it does not rely on the person having a family or friend being 
able to respond to the alert; this is referred to as an enhanced telecare 
service.  

 
3.8 Given that the service is available to all, whether with eligible care needs or 

not, the proposal for charging would be introduced to all those that receive the 
service.   

 
3.9 Other inner London local authorities take the following approach to telecare 

services. 
 
 Table 3:  Survey with other inner London local authorities  
  

Inner London 
Boroughs 

Basic 
service 
£ / week 

Enhanced  
service 
£ / week Comments 

Camden 3.60 4.60   

Greenwich 4.97    

Islington 2.94 6.96   

Lewisham 3.22 5.12  

Southwark 4.00     

Tower Hamlets    No charge 

Westminster 2.94     

 
 

Housing related support 
3.10  There are no savings assigned housing related support in 2016/17, however 

the range of services currently available reflect the landscape of 2003 when 
housing related support, Supporting People as it was then, had ‘something for 
everyone, a little more for those that need it and even more for those that 
need it the most.’.  The programme of services is currently £13 million, a 
reduction in spend of over £7 million from the original grant funding in 2003 for 
these services. To be fit for purpose over the next 5 years, the range of 
services and the services themselves should be redesigned to recognise that 
austerity, and its consequences, will continue for another 5 years.   

 
3.11 Officers have developed principles for informing decisions about the 

commissioning (of new services), recommissioning (possibly redesigned 
services) and decommissioning (stopping services) with respect to housing 
related support to respond to the current challenges.     

Page 21



 

 

 
3.11 The vision for housing related support and is best visualised as an inverted 

triangle:  ‘Supporting people that are most vulnerable, Enabling people to be 
active citizens, Moving on those that are capable.’   There would no longer be 
something for everyone, ie low level support that maintains and contains, 
rather than transforms, chaotic lifestyles. 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

3.12 All procurement decisions, due to the council’s local procurement regime 
relating to value and risk rating, are either subject to Hackney Procurement 
Board or Corporate Procurement Committee determination. 

 
3.13 By the scrutiny committee commenting on, and endorsing, the commissioning 

principles that will inform the road map for transforming housing related 
support landscape and the individual procurement decisions that will support 
the (re-)commissioning of these services. 

 
 
4   Conclusions 
 
4.1 As set out in the table below, three savings proposals are current policy:  day 

care has been agreed by Cabinet, mental health care placements is subject to 
the scheme of delegation to the Director of Adult Social Services, as is the 
commissioning of housing related support, which is also subject to 
procurement governance.  The fourth proposal, telecare charging is not 
current policy for the council and would be a Cabinet decision. 

 
 Table 4:  Status of savings proposals 
 

Status of proposals 2016/17  
£000 

Current 
Policy 

Continuation of existing Policy  850 Y 
Requiring Member Approval  245 N 
                                                                        Total 1,095  

Support for those that need it most 

Support to create capability 

Move on for 
those most 
capable 

Page 22


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the previous meeting
	CDM-#16447121-v1-Draft_Minutes_of_BSTG_-_Adult_and_Children_SC_16_Sept_2015

	5 Proposed savings areas for 2016/7
	CDM-#16473509-v1-CYPS_update_to_BSTG_A&CSC_Oct_2015
	CDM-#16491324-v1-item_5_ASC_update_to_21_Oct_mtg


